
Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
5 Dartmouth Drive Suite 200, Auburn NH 03032-3984 

May 7, 2024 
File: 195113533 

Attention: Mr. Tim D’Arcy 
Candia Planning Board 
74 High Street 
Candia, NH 03034 

Dear Mr. D’Arcy, 

Reference: 669 High Street - Major Site Plan Review#3 

Candia Tax Map 405 Lot 48 – Candia Planning Board Case#24-002 

In accordance with the request of the Town of Candia, NH Land Use Office we have reviewed the following 

submitted information, received by email thru Wednesday, March 25, 2024, by Jones and Beach Engineers, 

Inc. for the referenced proposed Major Site Plan application in Candia, NH:    

• Major Site Plan, entitled Multi-Family Development “Beaver Meadows”, prepared by Jones and

Beach Engineers, Inc., 31-page plan set, dated May 6, 2024

• Drainage Analysis, Sediment and Erosion Control Plan, entitled Beaver Meadows, prepared by Jones

and Beach Engineers, Inc., dated May 6, 2024 (155-page report)

• Response Letter to Stantec Review Letter#2, prepared by Jones and Beach Engineers, Inc., dated

May 7, 2024 (21-page letter)

The project submission was reviewed for conformance with the Town of Candia Zoning Ordinances 

(Ordinances) and Major Site Plan Regulations (Regulations), as well as other applicable state and local rules 

and regulations and accepted engineering practices. Based on our review of the submitted documents we 

offer the following comments for your consideration:  

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The plans propose the development of an existing 87.8-acre lot, with a 550 linear cul-de-sac common drive 

roadway proposed intersecting with High Street, across from Donavan Road; with three proposed multifamily 

buildings (6-units in total), a proposed barn, associated clearing, drainage, utilities, and site improvements. 

The units will be serviced with an on-site shared well and individual septic systems.  Comments from our 

February 15, 2024, review letter that have been addressed by the submitted revisions or additional 

information have been removed, comments that remain unresolved or that require a decision by the Board 

are indicated in italics and new comments based on the additional information provided are indicated in bold. 

We offer the following comments: 

1. The plans specify that 99,000 SF will be disturbed for the proposed improvements; however, based

on our review of the proposed improvements the disturbance areas that are specified are unrealistic

and the proposed improvements as shown will disturb more than 100,000 SF and will require a
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NHDES Alteration of Terrain (AoT) permit.  Comment not addressed; disturbance associated with 

the trenching that is required to install an electrical service to the proposed barn is not considered 

but should be included in disturbance square foot area; accounting for this additional unaccounted-

for disturbance, the project requires an NHDES AoT permit.  Comment partially addressed, the 

applicants engineer has responded that overhead electric wires or on-site solar power will 

provide electricity to the proposed barn.  However, overhead electric wires are not shown on 

the proposed plans and are not permitted, as specified in Regulation Section 4.03-L.  

 

9. The plans specify a plan scale of one-inch equals fifty feet (1” = 50’) but are required to be provided 

at a minimum of one-inch equals twenty feet (1” =20’), as specified in Regulation Section 4.03-E, it 

should be noted that the Applicant has requested a waiver for this regulation.  

Comment requires a determination by the Board for the requested waiver.  

10. The plans only provide a partial boundary, physical conditions, and topographical survey for part of 

the lot but are required to provide a survey of the entire parcel including the lot perimeter, boundary 

survey, as specified in Regulation section 4.03-F, 4.03-G and 4.03-I.  It should be noted that the 

applicant has requested a waiver to provide a partial survey for and in proximity to the proposed 

improvements.  

Comment requires a determination by the Board for the requested waiver.  

19. The proposed improvements require the submittal to and approval by the ZBA, NHDOT driveway 

permit (and/or amendment to the existing permit), NHDES subsurface disposal systems permit, 

NHDES Alteration of Terrain (AoT), NHDES Dredge and Fill permit and USACOE permit based on 

the proposed improvements.  It is required that a copy of all necessary permits for the project be 

submitted with the application to the Town in conjunction with the application and that the required 

permit approval numbers be listed on the cover sheet of the plan set for reference, as specified in 

Regulation section 4.05.  

Comment partially addressed; the required permits for the project are currently pending.  

20. The site is required to be provided with a designated and striped space for delivery vehicles, as 

specified in Regulation Section 8.03-A-2.  

Comment requires a determination by the Board for the requested waiver.  

23. The proposed access drive, barn and parking spaces are provided with less than 0.2 horizontal foot 

candles; lighting is required to be provided with a minimum of 0.2 horizontal foot candles with an 

average uniformity ratio of 4:1 and minimum color ratio index of 50 for common space, shared space 

and parking spaces, as specified in Regulation section 8.03-D.  

Comment requires a determination by the Board for the requested waiver.  

28. The proposed access drive culverts are specified as twelve-inch HDPE culverts, but are required to 

be a minimum of fifteen-inch RCP for open drainage systems, as specified in Regulation section 

8.06-K and 8.06-Q. 

Comment requires a determination by the Board for the requested waiver.  

49. Additional details and/or deed occupancy restrictions are required to ensure that the proposed well 

is not being proposed as or could potentially serve a small community system; for a water supply of 

25, or more, people the well would be considered a small community system and would be subject 
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to the requirements of NHDES Env Dw 305.  If deed restrictions are not put on the property 

maximizing the number of occupants, then we recommend that the proposed community well be 

submitted to NHDES for review and approval as a small community well system.  

Comment partially addressed; it is recommended that the required deed restriction be a 

condition of approval and be recorded prior to the Board signing the approved plans.  

58. It is recommended that the Board discuss whether the proposed cul-de-sac road should be 

designated as a private road with an associated street sign and property address numbers to 

minimize potential confusion from future first responders.  

Comment partially addressed; we recommend that the Board discuss this comment and the 

applicant’s responses.  

The proposed cul-de-sac storm water detention pond creates a stormwater impoundment adjacent 

to the roadway; the 100-year detention pond water level is required to be a minimum of 25-feet from 

the edge of pavement, as specified in Regulation Section 8.06L.   Comment requires a 

determination by the Board for the requested waiver.  

79. If it is the determination of the Board to approve the proposed application, it is required that 

a construction surety estimate in an amount sufficient to cover the cost of all terms, 

conditions or other off-site improvements where applicable be submitted for review and 

confirmed as appropriate by the Town’s Engineer, in conformance with Regulation Section 

5.03.  Additionally, it is recommended that the Board decide whether compliance inspections 

are required during construction, if determined required then it is recommended that payment 

for the review of the project surety and compliance inspection fees be paid by the applicant 

as a condition of approval.   

These comprise our comments at this time.  We invite the Engineer and Applicant to meet with us to discuss 

these comments and other design related topics, which may affect the project and the associated design.  

We reserve the right to make future comments based on proposed revisions and additional submissions.    

If you have any questions or need any additional information, please feel free to contact us.  

Respectfully,  

Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
 
 

Bryan Ruoff PE 

Associate 
Phone: 603 854 9501  
Fax: 603 669 7636  
bryan.ruoff@stantec.com 

 

 
c. Amy Spencer, Town of Candia 
   Joe Corenatti, Jones & Beach Engineers Inc.  
   Rene LaBranche, Stantec 
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May 15th, 2024 
 
 
This is an update on the HOP committee: 
 

1. We finished the town questionnaire shortly after town meeting in March. 
 

2. Southern NH Planning has yet to get back to the HOP committee with the results. 
 

3. Hop has not had a meeting since Feb. 
 

4. Cam took maternity leave. 
 

5. About 4 weeks ago Chairman, Carla Penfield, called Southern NH Planning because we had not 
heard from Cam. 
 

6. About 5 min. after the conversation with Southern NH Planning Carla got a phone call from Cam. 
 

7. The phone call was followed by an email stating the questionnaire would be tabulated and a 
meeting would be scheduled. 
 

8. Our last contact with Southern NH Planning, Cam, was about 4 weeks ago, we have not heard 
anything since. 
 

9. We have no results from the questionnaire, and we do not have a meeting scheduled. 
 

It is my opinion since HOP is a committee appointed by the Planning Board that the Planning Board 
might be concerned with the neglected way HOP has been treated by Southern NH Planning.  The 
committee is made up of a group of informed, interested, dedicated people who have done their part in 
this project, but as I stated we have been neglected by Southern NH Planning.   
Please feel free to contact me. 
 
Carla Penfield, chairman 
603-483-2667 
pentiques@comcast.net  
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